
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Sharon Thomas 01352 702324
sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

At: 

Y Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Haydn Bateman, Sean Bibby, Chris Dolphin, 
Andy Dunbobbin, David Evans, Veronica Gay, Cindy Hinds, Dennis Hutchinson, 
Joe Johnson, Vicky Perfect, Paul Shotton and Owen Thomas
Swydd wag Grŵp Annibynnwyr Newydd x2

Dydd Mercher, 15 Mai 2019

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Amgylchedd a 
fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 10.00 am Dydd Mawrth, 21ain Mai, 2019 yn Canolfan 
Ymwelwyr Parc Gwepra, Parc Gwepra, Cei Connah, Sir y Fflint CH5 4HL i ystyried 
yr eitemau canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 PENODI CADEIRYDD 
Pwrpas: Yn y Cyfarfod Blynyddol, penderfynodd y Cyngor y dylai’r grŵp 

Annibynnwyr Newydd enwebu Cadeirydd y pwyllgor. Gofynnir i’r 
Pwyllgor benodi Cadeirydd a enwebwyd.

2 PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD 
Pwrpas: Penodi Is-Gadeirydd ar gyfer y Pwyllgor.

3 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

4 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 

Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 
yn unol a hynny

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

5 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 10)

Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod  ar 9 Ebrill 
2019

6 PARC GWEPRA 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn cyflwyniad llafar ar Barc Gwepra.

7 LLWYBR BEICIAU'R WYDDGRUG I FRYCHDYN (Tudalennau 11 - 16)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Stryd a Chludiant) - Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod 
Cabinet dros Strydlun a Chefn Gwlad

Pwrpas: Ceisio argymhelliad i’r Cabinet ar gyfer cyflwyno cynigion am 
gyllid i adeiladu llwybr beiciau i gysylltu’r Wyddgrug a Brychdyn 
dan gyllid Teithio Llesol Llywodraeth Cymru.

8 PAPUR BRIFFIO AR GYFYNGIADAU CYFLYMDER GORFODOL O 20MYA 
YN SIR Y FFLINT. (Tudalennau 17 - 18)
Pwrpas: I’r pwyllgor dderbyn diweddariad.

9 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 19 - 24)
Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Amgylchedd - 

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Craffu & Trosolwg 
amgylchedd.

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
9 APRIL 2019

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee of 
Flintshire County Council held in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 
9 April 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Ray Hughes (Chairman)
Councillors: Sean Bibby, Chris Dolphin, Andy Dunbobbin, David Evans,  Dave Hughes, 
Joe Johnson, Vicky Perfect, and Paul Shotton 

APOLOGIES:  Councillors:  Mike Allport, Haydn Bateman, and Veronica Gay 

SUBSTITUTION:  Councillor Dennis Hutchinson (for Colin Legg)

ALSO PRESENT:  Councillors Christine Jones and David Wisinger (as observers)

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Carolyn Thomas, Cabinet Member for Streetscene and 
Countryside, Councillor Chris Bithell, Cabinet Member for Planning and Public 
Protection, Derek Butler, Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Interim 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation), Chief 
Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy), Access and Natural Environment 
Manager, Highways Network Manager, and Regulatory Services Manager

IN ATTENDANCE: Democratic Services Manager and Democratic Services Officers

56. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

57. MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings held on 26 February 2019 were submitted.

Accuracy
Typographical amendments to be made on page 5 and page 7.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the above the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chairman.

58. GREENFIELD VALLEY – SIX MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT

The Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy) introduced a report to 
provide an update on the work carried out to deliver the recommendations arising from 
the audit on the governance, funding, and operating arrangements at Greenfield 
Valley,  and the current operational position.  He provided background information and 
advised that following the audit, all actions had been completed with the exception of 

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



signing the Management Agreement. All interested parties had commented on drafts 
of the Agreement and the Trust had given a  commitment to sign the Agreement at 
their Board meeting on 7 May 2019.  The Chief Officer invited the Access and Natural 
Environment Manager to provide an update on the operational position at Greenfield 
Valley.

The Access and Natural Environment Manager reported on the operational 
highlights for the last six months, as detailed in the report.  He referred to a number of 
recent successful events and activities which had been held, and the woodland 
management, development and maintenance works undertaken.  He also reported on 
the initiative to revise admission fees to encourage people to buy annual passes 
throughout the year and reported that an Outdoor Learning Conference for education 
professionals would be hosted in the Valley on 4 April.  

The Access and Natural Environment Manager advised that the Council’s 
Streetscene service had been successful in securing almost £700k through the Welsh 
Government Active Travel Grant for the Valley which would improve links and 
communication.  He explained that the first phase would be to resurface the path along 
the old railway line to the coast road car park.  Further applications were to be 
submitted which would include proposals to improve the links from the Valley to Ysgol 
Treffynnon and from the Valley to Greenfield Dock.

In concluding his update the Access and Natural Environment Manager 
commented on the dependence of the Valley on the regular volunteers that assisted 
with the management of the site and explained that Greenfield Valley had registered 
to distribute Timecredits to volunteers.  The scheme was funded by the Welsh 
Government (WG) as part of a specific project in Flintshire and Wrexham for the next 
two years.  The initiative enabled volunteers to receive paper credits in exchange for 
their time which could be spent in registered facilities and businesses across the UK.

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) suggested that  the Committee 
may wish to hold a future meeting at Greenfield Valley and take the opportunity to have 
a tour of the Valley and the facilities provided at the same time.

Councillor Chris Dolphin congratulated the Chief Officer and the Access and 
Natural Environment Manager and his team, on their excellent work and the progress 
achieved regarding the recent audit recommendations.   He commented on the 
Council’s annual budget for management of the site which was in the region of £300k 
and said this was good value for money, however, he expressed disappointment that 
the Management Agreement had not yet been signed by Greenfield Valley Trust 
Limited which he said was unacceptable.  Councillor Dolphin also congratulated 
Officers on the success of the £700k grant secured through the WG Active Travel 
scheme which he said would make a significant impact on the Valley.   Councillor 
Dolphin stated that he did not consider that further update reports needed to be brought 
to future Scrutiny Committees, given the positive progress made. 

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin reiterated the views expressed by Councillor 
Dolphin on the excellent work and progress achieved by Officers and suggested that   
the recommendations in the report be amended to reflect this.  He also commented on 

Tudalen 4



the positive work which had been undertaken by officers in conjunction with the Armed 
Forces Covenant. 

Councillor Paul Shotton thanked Officers for a positive report and congratulated 
Officers on the initiative to simplify the pricing  structure for admission to the Valley  
and on the successful outcome of the bid for the WG Active Travel Grant.  

Councillor Dave Hughes said there was a need for improved signage to 
Greenfield Valley on the A55 which would encourage more visitors to the area.  
Councillor Carolyn Thomas acknowledged the point and said she would follow this up 
after the meeting.

Councillor Chris Bithell spoke of the industrial heritage and historical value of 
Greenfield Valley and said it was important that people had ease of access to the 
Valley as a whole and the facilities available.  He suggested that consideration be given 
to providing a form of transport for people with mobility problems who were unable to 
either walk or cycle along the Valley’s pathways.  Councillor Carolyn Thomas 
acknowledged the comments and agreed consideration could be given to the 
suggestion if funding and resources were available.

The Chief Officer suggested that a further report to update the Committee on 
progress to address the recent audit  report recommendations be submitted in six 
months and that a future Scrutiny meeting be held at the Valley in the autumn.

Councillor Paul Shotton moved the recommendations with the amendment 
proposed by Councillor Andy Dunbobbin.  

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee welcomes the update and progress in addressing the 
recent audit report recommendations;

(b) That the Committee’s congratulations be conveyed to all involved in making 
the changes;

(c) That a press statement supporting the progress be drafted; and

(d) That a meeting of the Committee, to include a further update on  addressing the 
Greenfield Valley audit  report recommendations and a  tour of the valley 
facilities, be held in six months.

59. ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT

Prior to consideration of the report on Environmental Enforcement the Chief 
Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) distributed a supplementary note to the 
Committee on income from Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs).

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) introduced a report to review 
the Council’s Enforcement Policy in respect of littering.  He provided background 
information and advised that following a recent review of the Council’s Environment 

Tudalen 5



Enforcement Service, the Council’s own Enforcement Officers had resumed 
responsibility for the enforcement of all low level environmental crimes (citing littering 
and dog fouling as examples).  He continued that the Cabinet had requested a refresh 
of the protocol for issuing FPNs and particularly the zero tolerance approach previously 
adopted by the Council’s enforcement teams which had been strictly implemented 
across the County.  The Chief Officer advised that the report provided clarity on the 
approach to enforcement activities in the future and invited the Regulatory Services 
Manager to present the report.

The Regulatory Services Manager reported on the key considerations, as 
detailed in the report.  She referred to the procedures for issuing a FPN where an 
Enforcement Officer had reason to believe a person had committed an offence and 
there was sufficient and appropriate evidence to support a prosecution in court should 
the FPN go unpaid.  She explained that accidental littering would not be dealt with by 
means of a FPN.  Referring to dog control the Regulatory Services  Manager explained 
that dog control patrols continued to take place in public areas, including areas subject 
to a Public Open Space Order (PSPO), which included officers undertaking plain 
clothes patrols.

The Regulatory Services Manager advised that Flintshire County Council’s 
Enforcement Officers were responsible for patrolling across all areas of the County to 
ensure all wards received a reasonable and appropriate level of enforcement 
presence, however, a daily presence in all areas could not be guaranteed.  She 
continued that during a meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held on 27 November 2018, a recommendation was put forward that consideration 
should be given for Town and Community Council’s to fund additional Enforcement 
Officers within their areas.  The Regulatory Services Manager reported that to assess 
the level of interest  in the proposal the Council would contact all Town and Community 
Councils and offer the opportunity to fund additional Officer time in their areas at an 
agreed daily rate which would take into account that all revenue generated through the 
Penalty Charge Notices would be retained by the County Council.  Following the 
approach to Town and Community Councils an exercise would take place to determine 
the sustainability of a scheme and consideration as to whether the project could be 
implemented with existing staffing numbers or whether additional Officers would need 
to be recruited.  

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin referred to the supplementary information which 
had been circulated to the Committee at the meeting and expressed concerns 
regarding the reference to an income target of £20k per annum, which equated to 266  
FPNs per year. He acknowledged the need to enforce action against low level 
environmental offences with intent but commented that the issuing of FPNs was not 
intended to be an income generation exercise.    The Chief Officer advised that there 
were no monthly targets set for Officers and the number of FPNs issued would vary 
each month.  He explained that the figures provided were indicative based on the 
number of notices previously issued.  The Chef Officer advised that the Council would 
rely on the professional judgement of its Enforcement Officers to exercise a balance 
between education and enforcement with the approach being that the Council would 
carry out appropriate action against people who intentionally littered or did not dispose 
of dog waste appropriately. 

Tudalen 6



Councillor Chris Dolphin referred to the guidance in the report that if an 
individual was deemed to have dropped litter deliberately and walked 5 metres away 
from the litter then enforcement action would be taken, and suggested that the distance 
should be reduced to 3 metres.  The Regulatory Services Manager explained that the 
distance stated was a general guideline only and if an individual had dropped litter they 
would be given the opportunity to pick it up and dispose of the waste appropriately.  
She reiterated that the emphasis was on a balance between education and 
enforcement.

 Councillor Dolphin commented on the level of enforcement presence to 
undertake car parking management and other environmental enforcement activities.  
The Regulatory Services Manager explained that the shift-patterns and start and finish 
times of Offices were amended during the summer and winter months to coincide with  
a change in the daily activities of the public and information concerning recurring 
issues.  

Councillor Dennis Hutchinson raised concerns on the issue of dog fouling which 
he said was an ongoing problem in his Ward.  He expressed further concerns regarding 
dog control and commented on the risks to safety arising by dogs which were not 
restrained or kept on a lead in public areas.  The Regulatory Services Manager 
confirmed that dog control patrols continued to take place in public areas, including 
areas subject to a Public Open Space Order, and officers were talking to all dog 
walkers on their patrols to provide information on exclusion areas and how to dispose 
of dog waste appropriately.  She advised that there were 7 Environmental Enforcement 
Officers whose combined roles were to deliver enforcement activity for environmental 
crimes.  Discussions were taking place with a neighbouring authority to potentially 
share some back office functions which may release funding to increase the number 
of frontline officers to undertake enforcement activity in the future.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas acknowledged the concerns raised by Councillor 
Hutchinson and commented on the need to work closely with local communities and 
area co-ordinators to gather intelligence and information on recurring issues and 
problem areas and times, particularly in relation to dog fouling.  

Councillor Joe Johnson suggested that additional signage be used in areas 
where dog fouling occurred to inform the public that the area was being monitored and 
of the need to dispose of dog waste appropriately.  Other possible measures including 
the use of spray paint, sound devices, and stencils, to highlight problem areas was 
discussed.

Councillor Sean Bibby commented on the cost to the Authority of providing  
‘clean-up’ services and enforcement control activities and emphasised the importance 
of improved communication and educational campaigns with the general public to 
educate and inform the general public.

Councillor David Evans referred to the proposal to contact all Town and 
Community Councils to offer the opportunity to fund additional Enforcement Officer 
time in their areas and expressed concerns that some Town or Community Councils 
may not have the financial resources to join the scheme.  Councillor Carolyn Thomas 
advised that all Town and Community Councils would continue to receive a service 

Tudalen 7



and the funding of an additional enforcement presence would not affect the existing 
rotas and the current arrangement in an area.

Councillor Chris Bithell expressed the view that ‘tougher’ action should be taken 
against environmental crime and individuals who intentionally committed an 
environmental offence.  He  reiterated the comments by Councillor Sean Bibby 
regarding the expense to the Authority of providing enforcement and ‘clean up’ 
services during  ongoing financial austerity and said there had been a deterioration in 
public standards which he felt would continue unless robust and effective enforcement 
measures were implemented.  

The Chair commented on the need to educate young children to prevent such 
problems arising in the future and suggested that Primary schools in Flintshire be 
approached to determine their interest.  The Programme Manager explained that a 
letter had been sent to headteachers of all Secondary Schools in Flintshire with an 
invitation to receive a presentation from the enforcement team which had been 
accepted by some schools.  She also referred to the information  which was made 
available through other groups and organisations to raise awareness in schools and 
amongst the general public. 

In response to the suggestion from the Chair that work be carried out with pupils 
in primary schools the Chief Officer agreed that proactive work could be undertaken 
between local area co-ordinators and primary schools.  The Chief Officer  suggested 
that a further report be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee to provide an 
update on the number of FPNs issued.

Councillor Paul Shotton commented that both Primary and Secondary schools 
in his Ward had been enthusiastic regarding involvement in environmental and 
enforcement activities.  He said local residents had also been positive in volunteering  
assistance in monitoring their local area.  Councillor Andy Dunbobbin referred to the 
work which was undertaken by community initiatives and schemes and cited the ‘Our 
Backyard’ scheme as an example.  

The Committee supported the initiative and recommended to Cabinet that it 
approved the protocol detailed within the report for low level crimes and the issue of 
Fixed Penalty Notices for littering and dog control offences.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee supports the initiative and recommends to Cabinet that it 
approves the protocol detailed within the report for low level crimes and the 
issue of Fixed Penalty Notices for littering and dog control offences.

Tudalen 8



(b) That the Committee recommends that Cabinet approve the proposal to offer 
Town and Community Councils the opportunity to support additional 
Enforcement Officers in their own areas. 

60. LOCAL TOILET STRATEGY   

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) introduced a report to seek 
a recommendation to Cabinet to approve the Council’s Local Toilet Strategy following 
the consultation period.  He provided background information and invited the Highways 
Network Manager to present the report.

The Highways Network Manager advised that the statutory consultation for the 
proposed Local Toilets Strategy had been open since 4 February 2019 with the closing 
date for feedback on the draft strategy being 26 April 2019.  To date the consultation 
had received 195 responses and a copy of the draft strategy was appended to the 
report.  The proposed strategy included a 12 point action plan for the two year period 
it covered and the Committee was asked to focus on five specific areas, as detailed in 
the report, that formed the basis of the strategy. 

Councillor David Evans referred to page 44 of the report and the needs 
assessment score for Shotton and asked what action was being taken to address the 
need for toilet provision in Shotton.  The Highways Network Manager explained that 
Shotton had been identified as an area that required toilet facilities as it didn’t have any 
existing dedicated facilities provided and there were no opportunities to use toilet 
provision in Council buildings such as libraries, connects centres, or leisure centres.

Councillor Chris Dolphin reported that the public toilets in Holywell were not 
open at the weekend and said he was not in favour of the alternative arrangements 
which depended on engagement with local businesses to provide toilet facilities. He 
commented that unless there was a much improved financial incentive from the Welsh 
Government it was unlikely that local businesses would consider the proposals put 
forward to be worthwhile.   He spoke of the needs of elderly people, people with mobility 
and health issues, and young children, and said it was not always practical to access 
existing facilities provided in Council buildings.  He spoke of the need to provide 
publicly accessible toilets within town centres to address the needs of people who 
visited their local high street to shop.

The Chief Officer advised that there had been a poor response from local 
businesses in general as a way of increasing the provision of additional facilities in the 
community and therefore alternative provision needed to be considered.

Councillor David Evans moved the recommendations.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Paul Shotton.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee supports the work completed to date and the on-going 
public statutory consultation on the Local Toilets Strategy; and 

Tudalen 9



(b) That the Committee’s responses to the four questions in the report be used to 
further develop the Local Toilets Strategy.

61. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Democratic Services Manager presented the Forward Work Programme for 
consideration.  He advised that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on 
21 May, at Wepre Park, Garden Room, Connah’s Quay, to consider the following 
items:

 update on Mold to Broughton cycleway
 progress report on speed limits outside schools and “20’s Plenty”.  

The Democratic Services Manager advised that following the Committee’s  
agreement a meeting of the Committee, to include a tour, would be held at Greenfield 
Valley later in the year.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the draft Forward Work Programme be approved; 

(b) That the facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the 
need arises; and 

(c) That a meeting of the Committee, which would include a tour, be held at the 
Greenfield Valley later in the year.

62. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press and no members of the public in 
attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.39 am)

…………………………
Chairman

Tudalen 10



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Tuesday 21 May 2019

Report Subject Proposed Active Travel routes between Mold and 
Broughton and neighbouring settlements.

Portfolio Holder Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Streetscene, 
Transportation and Countryside

Report By Chief Officer (Streetscene And Transportation)

Strategic / 
Operational

Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Flintshire County Council’s Integrated Transport Strategy seeks to facilitate the 
integration of all modes of transport (walking, cycling, bus and rail), in order to 
enhance access to employment and services, improve connectivity between 
communities and key destinations whilst minimising the impact on the environment.

The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 came into force in September 2014 requiring all 
Council’s to produce an Integrated Network Map (INM) highlighting their proposals 
for new and improved walking and cycling routes and to demonstrate year on year 
infrastructure improvements for Active Travel. Flintshire County Councils INM was 
approved by Welsh Government (WG) in 2017.

During the statutory consultation period for the Council’s INM, the cycle link from 
Mold to Broughton was identified as a key strategic corridor, receiving high levels of 
public support and consequently, through the provision of WG’s Active Travel 
funding obtained within 2018/19 financial year, the Council commissioned work to 
undertake route appraisal and scheme design work for the corridor. The proposal 
will link the communities of Mold, Buckley, Penyffordd, Broughton, Saltney and 
Sandycroft, whilst also providing links into existing railway stations at Buckley and 
Penyffordd and major centres of employment.  The route option appraisal is now 
complete with the detailed design work also nearing completion. 

The purpose of this report is to raise both the profile and awareness of the proposal 
and to seek a recommendation for the submission of the scheme for funding under 
the WG Active Travel fund for the 2020/21 financial year.

Recommendations

(a) That Scrutiny supports the proposals contained in the study and note the 
opportunity to deliver an exciting and innovative scheme.

Tudalen 11

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7



(b) That Scrutiny recommends the submission of the Mold to Broughton Cycle 
Scheme as the Councils Strategic application under the WG Active Travel 
fund for the 2020/21 financial year.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 Background

1.01 Flintshire County Councils Integrated Transport Strategy seeks to facilitate 
the integration of transport modes (bus, community transport, walking, 
cycling, rail), in order to  enhancing access to employment and services 
(health, education, training, shopping, social and leisure facilities), 
improving connectivity between communities and key destinations whilst 
minimising the impact on the environment.

1.02 Cycling is becoming an increasingly important element of transportation 
strategies in achieving sustainable development and can offer many well 
documented benefits including health, environmental and economic 
benefits whilst being a suitable form of transport for many local journeys.

1.03 The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 came into force in September 2014 for 
which required all local authorities to produce an Integrated Network Map 
(INM) of proposals for both new and improved walking and cycling routes to 
facilitate the delivery of year on year infrastructure improvements for Active 
Travel.  The Mold to Broughton corridor was included on the Council’s INM 
as a strategic link and formed part of the stakeholder engagement process 
and 12 week statutory consultation period during which it received strong 
support and demand.  The INM has since been approved by WG.

1.04 The objectives for introducing a cycling route between Mold and Broughton 
can be set in the context of the wider sustainable transportation goals, 
including reducing the growth of car use and promoting alternative modes 
of transport. 

1.05 A previously commissioned study undertaken in 2007 investigated the 
provision of a new Greenway facility linking Mold and Saltney. The aim was 
to utilise a disused railway line and improve accessibility by removing any 
barriers that would otherwise discourage any users from cycling or walking, 
however, the scheme was unfortunately abandoned due to land ownership 
constraints and is no longer feasible. 

1.06 Through the provision of WG Active Travel funding obtained within 2018/19 
financial year, Flintshire County Council commissioned consultants ‘Local 
Transport Projects’ to undertake route appraisal and design for a strategic 
cycling route from Mold to Broughton.

1.07 The proposals aim to link the communities of Mold, Buckley, Penyffordd, 
Broughton, Saltney and Sandycroft, investigate links into existing railway 
stations at Buckley & Penyffordd whilst also facilitating sustainable access 
to major sites of employment via the connection into the existing cycle 
network within the Deeside locality. The cycle network within Deeside 
Industrial Park currently attracts over 11,000 cyclists during peak months.

Tudalen 12



1.08 Due to the constraints identified within previous commissions, this study is 
therefore seeking to incorporate off road facilities, utilisation of highway 
verges, road realignment, point closures and other Traffic Management 
solutions in accordance with WG’s Active Travel Design Guidance,  thus 
reducing both the effect and reliance upon landowners. The route option 
appraisal is now complete with detailed design nearing completion. 

1.09 The proposal also offers the opportunity for new social enterprises or 
business growth with cafes, bike hire etc. This has been demonstrated 
already as a result of the Burton Marsh cycle path implementation where 
businesses such as cafes have set up as a result of increased cyclists in the 
area.

1.10 Each year local authorities are invited to submit an application for WG 
funding for one Strategic Scheme and two Local Schemes under the Active 
Travel Fund. Streetscene and Transportation view this proposal as an 
exciting opportunity to deliver a pioneering package of measures thus acting 
as a catalyst to promote modal shift to alternative sustainable modes of 
transport. 

1.11 The options for the proposed route of the cycleway has been included within 
Appendix 1 for information. The plan shows a number of route options along 
sections of the scheme, which will be shared in greater detail at the 
committee meeting, with the final alignment reflecting the views of Members 
following the meeting.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Flintshire County Council will be seeking WG Active Travel Funding to 
deliver the project in a phased programme of works.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 In 2015 Flintshire County Council held consultation events on the North 
Wales Joint Local Transport Plan. There were a number of requests for a 
safe cycling route to be provided between Mold and Broughton and as such 
this scheme was included in the Interventions within the North Wales Joint 
Local Transport Plan.

3.02 A proposal for a cycling/walking facility between Mold, Broughton and 
Deeside Enterprise Zone was also included on Flintshire’s Integrated 
Network Map (INM) and Schedule which underwent informal engagement 
and a public consultation in 2017. 

3.03 Landowner negotiation would be required for some routes options.

3.04 Consultation events will be programmed with those Town and Community 
Council’s affected by the proposals.

4.00 KEY RISKS AND MITIGATION 

Tudalen 13



4.01 Planning Permission will be required for those sections of the proposal that 
are not within the highway. 

4.02 The Tyddyn Street section is a recorded a Public Footpath on the 
Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way and as such a Cycle Track  
Conversion Order will be required.  

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 - Mold to Broughton (& links) Proposed Cycle Route Overview 
Map

5.02 Visualisation images of key route locations. (To  be provided at the 
committee meeting)

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE DOCUMENTS

6.01 Flintshire’s approved Active Travel Integrated Network Map:
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Connecting-
Settlements-Consultation/Revised-Maps/Amended-Maps/Flintshire-
Overview-INM.pdf

Flintshire’s approved Active Travel Schedule:
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Active-Travel-
Docs/INM-Revised-Schedule-2.pdf

Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
E-mail: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY

7.01 None

Tudalen 14

https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Connecting-Settlements-Consultation/Revised-Maps/Amended-Maps/Flintshire-Overview-INM.pdf
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Connecting-Settlements-Consultation/Revised-Maps/Amended-Maps/Flintshire-Overview-INM.pdf
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Connecting-Settlements-Consultation/Revised-Maps/Amended-Maps/Flintshire-Overview-INM.pdf
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Active-Travel-Docs/INM-Revised-Schedule-2.pdf
https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Active-Travel-Docs/INM-Revised-Schedule-2.pdf


Streetscene and Transportation Portfolio.
Appendix 1 Mold – Broughton Route options

T
udalen 15



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



Flintshire County Council - Streetscene and Transportation Portfolio.

Environment Overview and Scrutiny - May 2019.

Title:    20mph Mandatory Speed Limits within Flintshire. 

Purpose:

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested a report on the introduction of 20mph 
zones across the County at their meeting in May 2019. Whilst a report had been prepared, advising 
Members of current legislation and the restrictions associated with the implementation of blanket 
20mph mandatory speed limits, the recent announcement by The First Minister on the matter indicated 
a change in National Policy and this has rendered the report non applicable. 

Background:

Following the recent relaunch in Wales of the ‘20’s Plenty‘ Campaign, Flintshire County Council, along 
with many local authorities, are under increasing pressure to implement 20mph as the default speed 
limit within urban areas of the County. A number of local authorities have responded by the 
implementation of blanket speed limit Orders following local pressure and there are a number of trial 
arrangements in place across Wales, which are currently being evaluated, most notably in Cardiff.

Highway Authorities should take account of the level of Police enforcement required before installing 
such measures and must always formally consult the Police when considering their implementation. As 
with all speed limits on the highway network, Police resource will not permit the continual presence of 
an Officer to enforce speeding offences, and therefore, in accordance with the current legislation,  it is 
essential that all 20mph speed limit proposals are self-enforcing, either by means of existing driver 
behavior (i.e. existing recorded speeds prior to the scheme being implemented) or by means of physical 
traffic calming measures (or other measures) should existing speeds be above the required threshold 
level. 

The current approach in Flintshire County Council.

Whilst all school’s within Flintshire are subject to advisory 20mph speed limits (with the exception of 
those which are now covered by mandatory speed limits), such speed limits are not enforceable and 
therefore, have had varying degrees of effectiveness, following their initial implementation. By contrast, 
those schemes recently implemented in the County under the Welsh Government ‘Safer Routes in the 
Community’ initiative are governed by mandatory 20mph speed limits and the outcomes have proven 
to be very successful. 

Future Options

In order for the implementation of 20mph speed limits to be both achievable and affordable, a change 
to the current National Legislation is required and Welsh Council’s will await a decision from the First 
Minister as to when revised legislation is likely to be implemented.

A further report will be provided to the Scrutiny Committee, once this has been determined. 

Anthony Stanford
Transportation and Strategy Manager - April 2019Tudalen 17

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 8



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21st May 2019

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as 
the need arises. 

Tudalen 19

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 9



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Telephone: 01352 702427
E-mail: margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk
 

Tudalen 20

mailto:margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1

DRAFT
 
Date of 
Meeting

Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny 
Focus

Responsible/Contact 
Officer

Submission 
Deadline 

Tuesday 16th 
July 2pm

Year-end Reporting & 
Council Plan Monitoring 

To enable members to fulfil their 
scrutiny role in relation to 
performance monitoring

Performance 
monitoring/
assurance 

Facilitator

Tuesday 3rd 
September
10.00 am

Tuesday 15th 
October
10.00 am

Tuesday 26th 
November 
10.00 am

Tuesday 14th 
January
10.00 am

Tuesday 25th 
February 
10.00 am

T
udalen 23



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

2

 
Date of 
Meeting

Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny 
Focus

Responsible/Contact 
Officer

Submission 
Deadline 

Tuesday 7th 
April 10.00 
am

Tuesday 19th 
May 10.00 am

Tuesday 14th 
July 2pm

Awareness raising session on recyclable waste – 3rd June 10am – 1 pm

T
udalen 24


	Rhaglen
	5 Cofnodion
	7 Llwybr Beiciau'r Wyddgrug i Frychdyn
	Appendix 1 -  Mold to Broughton Cycleway

	8 Papur briffio ar Gyfyngiadau Cyflymder Gorfodol o 20mya yn Sir y Fflint.
	9 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Environment)


